THIS EXHIBIT “B” REFERRED TO IN
THE AFFIDAVIT OF JOYCE E. REES
SWORN BEFORE ME THIS 18TH DAY
OF FEBRUARY, 2015.

A Conﬂsz%er of Qaths



From: Kathrin.Menge [mailto:Kathrin.Menge @target.com]
Sent: October 31, 2014 11:20 AM

To: Joyce Rees; Steve Yudin

Subject: RE: This weekend's study

Since the US team is paying for all of the Project Loon waves, please put the following on the invoice please:
Attn: Chris VonDohlen

I will forward the invoice on to him and he can get it paid. | don’t have the PO number as they use a different system
down there, '

Thanks,
Kathrin

Kathrin Menge | Manager Guest insighis & Targel Canada | 5570 Explorer Dnve | Mississanga. Ontanio. 143 074 | Fhern
289.261.0086 | kathrin.menge@target.com

From: Joyce Rees [mailto:JoyceRees@advitek.com)|
Sent: Friday, October 31, 2014 10:56 AM



To: Kathrin.Menge; Steve Yudin
Subject: RE: This weekend's study

Hi Kathrin:

How are you doing? Looks pretty busy with all the things we are working on. ! will let Steve continue with this project,
but if you need me for anything just let me know.

I will send you an invoice for $20,000 for the first two phases of Project Loon, That you should receive today.
Joyce

Joyce Rees

President

235 Yorkland Bivd, Suite 301
Toronto, ON, M2J 4Y8

Office: 416-756-2867 x201
Mobile: 416-573-7990

ita Collechon

From: Kathrin.Menge [mailto:Kathrin.Menge @target.com)
Sent: October 31, 2014 10:31 AM

To: Steve Yudin

Cc: Joyce Rees

Subject: RE: This weekend's study

Thanks Steve. Please work your magic! © They're actually really minor wording changes to Oakwlle so that | can
compare the results to the Ancaster store. Pretty please?

PS. Did | tell you that the Nov.7-8 research at Ancaster & Bramalea is postponed to Nov. 22-23?

Kathrin

From: Steve Yudin [mailto:SteveYudin@advitek.com]
Sent: Friday, October 31, 2014 10:27 AM

To: Kathrin.Menge
Cc: Joyce Rees
Subject: RE: This weekend's study

Hi Kathrin,

I just sent you an email with another query and | guess our emails crossed paths!
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; I will review this and get back to you. I'm not sure we can make any revisions at this late stage but | will let you know
! hortly.
h S

Thanks,

| Steve

Steve Yudin

Vice President
Advitek

Mobile: 416.573.8175
http: / /www.advitek.ca

j From: Kathrin.Menge [mailto:Kathrin.Menge@target.com]
Sent: October-3i-14 10:09 AM

To: Steve Yudin

Cc: Joyce Rees

Subject: RE: This weekend's study

Hi Steve,
Attached are photos of the Target Oakville store that | took last night.

Yes, respondents will skip to Q17. That is correct.

Yes, if a respondent saw both the front & back seasonal section then | would like them to answer for both sections
please.

Ancaster will have both set up as Hafloween.
Oakville will only have back set up as Halloween.

So upon further thought, would it be possible to tweak the Oakville survey still???? If so, attached is a revised Oakville
survey. The items that do NOT need to be asked in Oakville are now in red, and the items where | tweaked the language
(minor tweaks) are in green,

Please let me know if this is possible.

Thanks,
Kathrin

Kathrin Menge | Manager Guest Insights & Target Canada | 5570 Explorer Drive | Mississauga. Ontario, L4W 0G4 | Phone-
280.261.0086 | kathrin.menge@target.com

From: Steve Yudin [mailto:SteveYudin@advitek,com]

Sent: Thursday, October 30, 2014 4:31 PM



To: Kéthrin.Menge
Subject: RE: This weekend's study

Hi Kathrin,

fyi, We received the incentives — thanks.

Couple of queries re the survey:

-If a respondent did not browse Seasonal at Q6, after Q7 they will skip all the way to Q17, correct?

-Would you like respondents to rate both the front and back displays if they saw both? The questionnaire states to ask
Q15/16 only if they saw the ‘back only’.

Thanks,

Steve

Steve Yudin

Vice President
Advitek

Mobile: 416.573.8175
http: / /www.advitek.ca

From: Kathrin.Menge [mailto:Kathrin,Menge@target.com]
Sent: October-28-14 6:00 PM

To: Steve Yudin
Subject: RE: This weekend's study

Hi Steve,
Here is the Ancaster and Oakville Qre. It's an identical survey. Page 1 is the observation guide.
Kathrin

Kathrin Menge | Manager Guest Insights & Target Canada { 5570 Explorer Drive | Mississauga, Ontano, LAW 0C4 | Phone:
289.261.0086 | kathrin.menge@target.com

From:; Steve Yudin [mailto:SteveYudin@advitek.com

Sent: Tuesday, October 28, 2014 3:35 PM
To: Kathrin.Menge
Subject: RE: This weekend's study

Just a reminder.....we’ll also need the observation instructions so we can set up that form as well. Unless it’s identical to
last time.

Thanks,



Steve

From: Kathrin.Menge [mailto:Kathrin.Menge@target.com]
Sent: October-28-14 11:53 AM

To: Steve Yudin

Subject: RE: This weekend's study

Yes | just received feedback from the US this morning so now | need to incorporate it in and then | can send it to

you. Trouble is, I'm heading out to research now for a few hours, but I'll be back online around 4:30pm so you’ll get the
survey by tonight.

Thanks for checking in!

Kathrin

From: Steve Yudin [mailto:SteveYudin@advitek.com]
Sent: Tuesday, October 28, 2014 11:31 AM

To: Kathrin.Menge

Subject: RE: This weekend's study

Hi Kathrin,
Hope all is well.

Do you anticipate sending the guestionnaire through to us today for the upcoming study in Ancaster and Qakyville this
weekend? We're hoping to see it soon if at alt possible.

Many thanks!

Steve

Steve Yudin

Vice President
Advitek

Mobhile: 416.573.8175

http://www.advitek.ca

From: Kathrin.Menge [mailto:Kathrin.Menge@target.com]
Sent: Cctober-22-14 12:50 PM

To: Steve Yudin

Subject: RE: any update on costs?

'l do my best.
Kathrin



From: Steve Yudin [mailtg:SteveYudin@advitek.com]
Sent: Wednesday, October 22, 2014 12:08 PM

To: Kathrin.Menge

Subject: RE: any update on costs?

Terrific — we are putting things in place. If we can get your questionnaire by this Friday or latest Monday morning that
would be great.

Thanks Kathrin!

Steve Yudin

Vice President

Advitek

Mobile: 416.573.8175
http://www.advitek.ca

From: Kathrin.Menge [mailto:Kathrin.Menge@target.com]
Sent: October-22-14 11:57 AM

To: Steve Yudin

Subject: RE: any update on costs?

Hi Steve,
Wanted to confirm that we will be moving forward with the Nov.1-2 intercepts and observations as per your quote
below.

¥l work on the Qre this week.

Kathrin

Kathrin Menge | Manager Guest Insights @ Target Canada | 5570 Explorer Drive . Mississauga, Ontario, L4W 004 | Phone:

289.261.0086 | kathrin.menge@target.com

From: Steve Yudin [mailto:SteveYudin@advitek.com]
Sent: Tuesday, October 21, 2014 7:01 PM

To: Kathrin.Menge

Subject: RE: any update on costs?

Hi Kathrin,
Specifications for the Target project ‘Transition’ [as the stores sell off the Halloween products]:

* =200 T-CAPI interviews, 100 per an Oakville store and the Ancaster store.

¢ Plus 5 hours cbservations per store.

¢ Shared questionnaire, with minor differences by store,

s New, but same gquestionnaire length as the Loon project.

¢ Deliverables are tables and PowerPoint [including use of some slides from previous studies].

Our quote for this study is $12,500.



Hopé this works for you and please let me know when we can receive the finalized questionnaire to begin T-CAPI
programming.

Please call with questions.
Best regards,

Steve

Steve Yudin

Vice President
416.756.2867 Ext. 202
Mobile: 416.573.8175
http: / /www.advitek.ca

From: Kathrin.Menge [mailto:Kathrin,Menge@target.com]
Sent: October-21-14 3:09 PM

To: Steve Yudin

Subject: any update on costs?

Hi Steve,
If you can please send me the cost for the additional Nov. 1-2 wave of research (Ancaster & Oakville) that would be

great. Any possibility of getting that today?

Thanks,
Kathrin

Kathrin Menge | Manager Guest Insights @ Target Canada | 5570 Explorer Dive , Mississauga. Ontanie, 1AW 0G4 | Phone:
2889.261.0086 { kathrin.menge®@target.com







From: Steve Yudin

Sent: February 17, 2015 4:55 PM
To: joyce Rees

Subject: FW: Q4 exit interviews

Here is the 2™ of 2 emails. This one does explicity define the project as part of Loon.

From: Steve Yudin

Sent: November-12-14 4:14 PM
To: 'Kathrin.Menge'

Cc: Joyce Rees

Subject: RE: Q4 exit interviews

Hi Kathrin,

Here also is the document you requested for the November 1 weekend study we called ‘Seasonal’, part of the Loon
project.

The invoice will be forwarded to you later this week.

Best,



Steve

Steve Yudin

Vice President
Advitek

Mobile: 416.573.8175
http: / /[www.advitek.ca

From: Steve Yudin

Sent: November-11-14 7:04 PM
To: 'Kathrin.Menge'

Cc¢: Joyce Rees

Subject: RE: Q4 exit interviews

Hi Kathrin,

We're excited to continue to work with you for these upcaoming Target projects!

Thanks for discussing the details with me yesterday and for sending us a summary of the specifications, that’s been very

helpful.

I have attached our cost documents for each phase of this research. The cost for the first phase, Black Friday, is
unchanged from our previous quotation. The cost for the third phase, Boxing Day, has been tweaked slightly due to the
adjusted sample size and scheduling requirements. Please call with any questions.

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
Sent: November-07-14 5:27 PM

To: Steve Yudin; Joyce Rees

Subject: Q4 exit interviews

Hi there,
| decided to write down the details of each of the Q4 projects so you have it all in writing, then absolutely, give me a call
on Monday and we can chat about any questions you have. I'm free on Monday for a call between 10-11am.

Overall comments for Advitel:

* We would like to complete 40 exit interviews in 1 day. Assume the stores have enough traffic (which it will on these
holidays). | don’t really care if that means you need to have 1 or 2 interviews per store, as long as | get my 40
completes.

* Please note there are some differences in the 3 studies below. Take a read through in detail, then please provide me
with costs for each study separately.

¢ Please see the attached store list (same stores as Aug. 2014, however | added in the holiday store hours by store,
you’ll see that some stores are closed on Boxing Day).

Study title: BLACK FRIDAY

Field date: Fri. Nov.28 (1 day only)

25 stores (as per attached excel list)

Sample: N=40 completes per store.

Store Open: 6am — 11pm. (the stores wili all open at 6am on Black Friday, and we suspect that many shoppers will go
before and after work, therefore busy times will be 6-10am and 4-9pm. Can you please try to spread out the 40
completes across these 2 time periods.) Note Quebec stores have different store hours.

Assume Qre will be ~ 5-7 minutes.

Reporting: ppt report required. Please compare results to our Aug.2014 results {our benchmarik) on total. {not at a store
by store level}.

Cost: ? Please send me the cost for this study.

Study title: HOLIDAY

Field dates: Sat. Dec. 6, 13, 20. {every Saturday)

25 stores (as per attached excel list)

Sample: N=30 completes per store, each Saturday.

Store Open: 8am — 11pm. (different for Quebec). {Interviewing can take place during regular peal times, such as 10am
~ 4pm each Saturday).

Assume Qre will be ~ 5-7 minutes.

Reporting: ppt report required. Please compare results to our Aug.2014, and include all 3 waves of the holiday exits in 1
report after the last wave. We can discuss the template.

Cost: ? Please send me the cost for this study. Note the sample changed down to N=30 per store, but it's now every
Saturday in December.

Study title: BOXING DAY

Field date: Fri. Dec. 26 {1 day only)

23 stores (as per attached excel list — minus Newfoundland & Sudbury which are both closed.)

Store open: 6am — 10pm (different for Quebec). (the stores will open at 6am on Boxing Day, and we suspect that many
shoppers will go first thing in the morning to catch the good deals and the products in stock, therefore, we should start
the interviewing fairly early in the morning on Boxing Day, say at 6 or 7am, then try to spread out the 40 completes
across the day.)




Assume Qre will be ~ 5-7 minutes.

Reporting: ppt report required. Please compare results to our Aug.2014 results (our benchmark), vs. Black Friday, vs.
Holiday. We can discuss the template.

Cost: ? Please send me the cost for this study.

Reporting: ! think it would be a good idea for us {you) to please start an excel file with each question listed down the A
column, then start tracking each wave of closed-ended results (on total, not store by store). So column B would be the
Aug. 2014, column C will be the Black Friday......etc.... If we start this now, then it will be easier to keep adding on the
new wave of data. This won’t be shared out with the organization, but will be a very handy tool for us in Guest Insights
to be able to compare over time. Can you please start this file for me?

[ think that's it for now.

Can you please schedule a weekly status call between us (send me a meeting invite), so that we have a 30 minute time
in our calendars each week to review the status of our projects since we have so much going on.

Thanks and have a greaf weekend!

- Kathrin

Kathrin Menge | Manager Guest Insights @ Target Canada | 5570 Explorer Drive | Mississauga, Ontario, LAW 0C4 | Phane
289.261.0086 | kathrin.menge@target.com

From: Steve Yudin [mailto:SteveYudin@advitek.com]
Sent: Friday, November 07, 2014 12:38 PM

To: Kathrin.Menge; Joyce Rees

Subject: RE: Ancaster Target photos

Hi Kathrin,

Excellent to hear!

This aft is not ideal for us and | agree a conversation makes sense rather than you sending the details via email.
I am free early aft Monday — | have a briefing at 2, so any time between noon and 1:30.

Joyce will let you know if she is free as well. If that doesn’t work then perhaps later in the day.

Many thanks,

Steve

Steve Yudin
Vice President



Advitek
Mohile: 416.573.8175
http://www.advitek,ca

From: Kathrin.Menge [mailto:Kathrin.Menge@target.com]
Sent: November-07-14 12:29 PM

To: Steve Yudin; Joyce Rees

Subject: RE: Ancaster Target photos

And when | come up for air.....on Monday, | have lots of information for you for our next 3 studies. If you like, we can
‘have a phone call about it this aft (that will force me to get you the info sooner rather than later), else if you need me to
craft an email, that might take me until Monday. Up to you.

In a nutshell, all 3 (BF, holiday (modified) and BD are a go! But I have details on each.

Kathrin

From: Steve Yudin [mailto:SteveYudin@advitek.com]
Sent: Friday, November 07, 2014 12:26 PM

To: Kathrin.Menge; Joyce Rees

Subject: RE: Ancaster Target photos

Thanks Kathrin.

Steve Yudin

Vice President
Advitek

Mobile: 416.573.8175
http://www.advitek.ca

From: Kathrin.Menge [mailto:Kathrin.Menge@target.com]
Sent: November-07-14 12:19 PM

To: Steve Yudin; Joyce Rees
Subject: Ancaster Target photos

Here are 2 photos from Ancaster of the clearance section for the Nov.1-2 report.

Kathrin

Kathrin Menge | Manager Guest insights ® Target Canade | 5570 Explorer Drive . Mississauga. Ontano, L4W 004 | Phone
289.261.0086 { kathrin.menge@target.com
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Quotation — Target ‘Seasonal’ Study (Part of Loon)

To: Kathrin Menge
Manager, Guest Insights
Target Canada
5570 Explorer Drive
Mississauga, ON, L4W 0C4

From; Steve Yudin
Vice President
Advitek Inc.
235 Yorkland Boulevard, Suite 301
Toronto, ON, M2J 4Y8

Date: November 12, 2014

Kathrin,

Thank you again for this opportunity to work with you and Target. This document is a review of the
project specifications for the study which Advitek Inc. completed data collection and data processing
in early November 2014,

Study specifications

» Study dates: Saturday and Sunday, November 1 & 2

s Locations: 2 stores in Ontario: Oakville and Ancaster

¢ Sample size: n=200 T-CAPI interviews (n=100 per storg).

+ Qualifying respondents: All exiting Target customers, 18+ years

¢ Survey length: 5-7 minutes, 3 open ends; questionnaire Word docs per store were provided
by Target for Advitek to program to T-CAPI

« Additional work: 5 hours of Cbservations per store



Cost Estimate
The study cost is $13,500.

Target provided $5 Target gift cards for respondent incentives (not included in the cost above).

Study deliverables

« Tables, with open ends transcribed and coded
» PowerPoint

¢ Excel grid of Observation results

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Best regards,

~ e {:,
(A e
V?Z/ 2
/
Steve Yudin

Vice President, Advitek






From: Steve Yudin

Sent: February 17, 2015 4:55 PM

To: Joyce Rees

Subject: FW: Request for new project

This is 1 of 2 of the pre-Holiday costings | sent to Kathrin — it does not mention ‘Loon’ as Kathrin did not define it as Loon
at the time.

From: Steve Yudin

Sent: November-13-14 2:06 PM

To: 'Kathrin.Menge'

Cc: Joyce Rees

Subject: RE: Request for new project

Hi Kathrin,

Our cost document for this proposal is attached.
No problem for staffing. Please call with questions.
Cheers,

Steve



Steve Yudin

Vice President
416.756.2867 Ext. 202
Mobile: 416.573.8175
http:/ /www.advitek.ca

From: Kathrin.Menge [mailto:Kathrin.Menge@target.com]
Sent: November-12-14 4:30 PM

To: Joyce Rees; Steve Yudin

Subject: Request for new project

Hi Joyce & Steve,
Can you please provide me with a guote to do the following:

Target store Brampton Bramalea

Sat. Nov. 29 & Sat. Sat. Dec.6

N=100 intercepts in front of the store window on each date

Qre to be approx.. 5 questions. All closed ended.

The reporting will only be a 1 pager that shows the pre vs. post results.

We know that the holiday exit interviews are also on Sat. Dec. 6 but those will be at the EXITS, whereas the above study
will be within the mall in front of the actual store window.

Sorry for the short notice, but if you can shoot me a quote for tomorrow and see if you have staffing available for this on
those 2 dates, that would be great.

Thanks,
Kathrin

Kathrin Menge | Manager Guest Insights @ Target Canada | 5570 Explorer Diive | Mississauga, Ontano. AW 004 5 Phong.
289.261.0086 | kathrin.menge@targst.com




To:

From:

Date:

preae: efRempesisianey g efoafer codier Mo

Quotation — Target Bramalea ‘Store Window’ Study

Kathrin Menge

Manager, Guest Insights
Target Canada

5570 Explorer Drive
Mississauga, ON, L4W 0C4

Steve Yudin

Vice President

Advitek Inc.

235 Yorkland Boulevard, Suite 301

Toronto, ON, M2J 4Y8

November 13, 2014

Kathrin,

Thank you again for this opportunity to work with you and Target. Advitek Inc. will conduct data
collection and data processing for this research study in one Target store in Brampton, Ontario.

Study specifications

Study dates: Saturday, November 29 and December 6

Location: Brampton Bramalea store, 1 level only (upper or lower TBD)

Sample size: n=200 T-CAPI interviews (n=100 per Saturday).

Qualifying respondents: Shoppers, 18+ years, are intercepted inside of the Mall, in front of
the Target store window

Survey length: 5 questions, no open ends, maximum length of 3-4 minutes; questionnaire
Word doc to be provided by Target for Advitek to program to T-CAPI



Cost Estimate
The study cost is $8,500.

Target will provide $5 Target gift cards for respondent incentives (not included in the cost above).

Study deliverables

» Tables
» One page PowerPoint report comparing the pre vs. post results

Please let me know if you have any gquestions.

Best regards,

. o
S e S

Vas

Steve Yudin
Vice President, Advitek
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THIS EXHIBIT “C” REFERRED TO IN
THE AFFIDAVIT OF JOYCE E. REES
SWORN BEFORE, ME TIIS 18TH DAY
OF FEBRUARY, 2015.
« ]/

Comissioner Jj%aths




Advitek Inc.

235 Yorkland Boulevard
Suite 301

Toronto, Ontario

M2J 4Y38

Invoice To

Target Corporation US
Attention; Chris Von Dohlen

Invoice

Date

Invoice #

10/31/2014 8862

Enterprise Strategy
P.O. No. Terms
Net 30
Description Amount
Advitek Project Number 290.002/003 Project Loon 20,000.00
Total project estimate $31,000 for 3 phases
Phases 1: Sept 27/28 Ancaster, Brampton Bramalea - completed
Phase 2: Oct 4/5 Ancaster, Brampton Bramalea - completed
Phase 3: Nav 22/23 Ancaster, Brampton Bramalea - still to be compeleted
Initial invoice for Phase 1 and 2
Final invoice for Phase 3 to follow on completion
Please note this is Canadian $
Total CAD 20,000.00
Payments/Credits CAD 0.00

Phone #

Balance Due  ap 20 000.00

416-756-2867

GST/HST No. 100064120







Invoice

Date Invoice #
) 1111712014 Bar3
Advitek Inc.
235 Yorkland Boulevard
Suite 301
Toronto, Ontario
M2J 4Y8
Invoice To
Target Corporation US
Attention: Chris Von Dohlen
Entsrprise Strategy
P.O. No. Terms
Net 30
Description Amount
Advitek Project 290.004/5 ‘Seasonal’ study (Part of Project Loon) 13,500.00
Ancaster and Oakville Stores,
November 1 &2
Study estimated at $13,500
Total CAD 13,500,00
Payments/Credits CAD 0.00

Phone #

416-756~2867

GST/HST No. 100064120

Balance Due ap 13500.00







Invoice

Date Invoice #
_ 11/28/2014 8875
Advitek Inc.
235 Yorkland Boulevard
Suite 301
Toronto, Ontario
M2J 4Y8
Invoice To
Target Corporation US
Attention; Chris Von Dohlen
Enterprise Strategy
P.0O, No, Terms
Net 30
Description Amount
Advitek Project Number 280.002/003 Project Loan 12,250.00
Total project estimate $31,000 for 3 phases
Phases 1: Sept 27/28 Ancaster, Brampton Bramalea - completed
Phase 2: Oct 4/5 Ancaster, Brampton Bramalea - completed
Phase 3. Nov 22/23/24 Ancaster, Brampton Bramales - completed
Initial invoice for Phase 1 and 2 sent for $20,000
Final invoice for Phase 3 {($11,000) plus additional charges for schedule changes
($1,250)
Please note this is Canadian $
Total CAD 12,250.00
Payments/Credits CAD 0.00
Fhone # Balance Due  cap 1225000

416-756-2867

GST/HST No, 100064120







Invoice

Date Invoice #

12/10/2014 8881

Advitek Inc.
235 Yorkland Boulevard
Suite 301
Taronto, Ontario
M2J 4Y8
Invoice To
Target Corporation US
Attention: Chris Von Dohlen
Enterprise Strategy
P.0. No. Terms
Net 30
Description Amount
Project 280.005 Bramalae Store Window 8,500.00
Estimated at $8,500
Total CAD 8,500.00
Payments/Credits CAD 6.00
Phone # Balance Due  ¢ap 850000

416-756-2867

GST/HST No. 100064120
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THIS EXHIBIT “D” REFERRED TO IN

THE AFFIDAVIT OF JOYCE E. REES

SWORN BEFORE ME THIS 18TH DAY
OF FEBRUARY, 2015.

By

z sioner of @ﬂths



From: Steve Yudin <Steve Yudin@advitek.com>
Date: January 21, 2015 at 12:12:05 PM EST

To: Joyce Rees <JoyceRees@advitek.com>
Subject: FW: Invoice from Advitek Inc.

Here is that email......

----- Original Message----- .

From: Kathrin.Menge [mailto:Kathrin. Menge@target.com]
Sent: November-18-14 11:19 AM

To: Steve Yudin

Subject: RE: Invoice from Advitek Inc.

It's my US team who will be paying for that study (Seasonal clearance) so there is no PO number
as they have a different invoicing system than us. Can you please change the invoice so that it's
addressed to:

Chris Von Dohlen
Enterprise Strategy
Target US

Then resend to me and I will forward it on to Chris.

Thanks,
Kathrin

e ak s ofe e ok st afe sk o sl sk o ok ode sk ok sk st st sk ol o ok o stk ok ok stk sk sk o sk s o e sl sk ok ok ko ol ok ok

From: Steve Yudin [mailto:Steve Yudin@advitek.com]

1



Sent: Tuesday, November 18, 2014 10:52 AM
To: Kathrin.Menge
Subject: FW: Invoice from Advitek Inc.

HI Kathrin,

I am attaching the invoice for the November 1 & 2 study. I believe you usually provide a PO for
this, please advise if we need one and/or need to re-issue this.

Many thanks,

Steve

Steve Yudin

Vice President
Advitek

Mobile: 416.573.8175
http://www.advitek.ca
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THIS EXHIBIT “E” REFERRED TO IN
THE AFFIDAVIT OF JOYCE E. REES
SWORN BEFORE ME THIS 18TH DAY
OF FEBRUARY, 2015.

)
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' From: Rachel.Roberts [mailto:Rachel.Rob’erts@target.com]

Sent: January 9, 2015 12:41 PM
To: Kathrin.Menge; Joyce Rees
Ce: Accounting

Subject: RE: Target Invoices

Kathrin-
| just spoke with Joyce and | think we have it straightened out. The invoices will be directed to Target Canada and she

will send them over on Monday for me to process with the Accounts Payable team.
Thanks!
Rachel

From: Kathrin.Menge

Sent: Friday, January 09, 2015 11:39 AM
To: Joyce Rees; Rachel.Roberts

Cc: Accounting

Subject: RE: Target Invoices

Thanks Joyce. Sorry about the confusion. | was told originalty by the entefprise strategy team to make the invoices
payabie to Chris von Dohlen in the US, which is what we did.

we'll wait for Rachel’s direction on whom to make the invoices payable to. (name and address).

Thanks,



Kathrin

Kathrin Menge | Mansager Guest Insights & Tarqet Canada | 5570 Explorer Dave Rhasisemga Doads L0 004 Phoes
280.261.0086 | kathrin.menge@target.com

From: Joyce Rees [mailto:JoyceRees@advitek.com]
Sent: Friday, January 09, 2015 11:20 AM

To: Rachel.Roberts

Cc: Kathrin.Menge; Accounting

Subject: RE: Target Invoices

Hello Rachei;

I am sorry we were not able to speak this marning. If you can be clear and explicit as to the address to whom the
invoices shouid be sent, | can arrange to have them revised and sent via email to you so that you have them for first
thing Monday morning.

If they are sent to Target Canada | will include the Canadian HST tax.

If they are sent to an address in the US, we can omit the Canadian HST.

I have incfuded my Canadian client contact in this communication so that she is aware of how we are modifying these
invoices, and apply the same approach in future invoices.

Thank you.

Joyce Rees

President

235 Yorkland Bivd, Suite 301
Toronto, ON, M2J 4Y8

Office: 416-756-2867 x201
Mobile: 416-573-7990
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From: Rachel.Roberts [mailto:Rachel.Roberts@target.com]
Sent: January 8, 2015 6:42 PM

To: Joyce Rees

Subject: Target Invoices

Hello-

Your team recently did some work for the Target Canada team and | am working on processing the invoices for this
worl. | have run into an issue with our Accounts Payable team because the invoices are invoiced to “Target Corporation
US” but the work was done for “Target Corporation Canada.” | will need new invoices issued {8862, 8873, 8875, 8881) so



our team can pay these invoices. Please reach out as soon as possibie as we would like to pay you before our Fiscal Year
End on January 31%.

Thanks!

Rachel Roberts

Rachel Roberts | Assistant to Gene Han | Enterprise Stralegy | © Target | 612.695.5172
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SWORN BEFORE ME THIS 18TH DAY
OF FEBRUARY, 2015.
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--—-Original Message-----

From: Rachel.Roberts [mailto:Rachel. Roberts@target.com]
Sent: January 15, 2015 5:37 PM

To: Joyce Rees

Cc: Chris.VonDohlen

Subject: RE: Invoice from Advitek Inc. 8881

Joyce-

1 have contacted our Accounts Payable team to follow up on the below. I will be in touch tomorrow.
Thanks!

Rachel

From: Joyce Rees [mailto:JovceRees(@advitek.com|
Sent: Thursday, January 15, 2015 1.35 PM

To: Rachel.Roberts

Cc: Kathrin.Menge

Subject: RE: Invoice from Advitek Inc. 8881

Hi Rachel;

It was quite a shock to hear the news of the Candian Target stores today.
Can I confirm that the invoices just sent to you will still be paid as the work was done for the Enterprise group

in the US?

And we had been clearly told that that was to be invoiced to the US in the first case?

Joyce Rees
President



235 Yorkland Blvd, Suite 301
Toronto, ON, M2J 4Y8

Office: 416-756-2867 x201
Mobile: 416-573-7990

From: Rachel. Roberts [mailto:Rachel. Roberts@target.com]
Sent: January 12,2015 11:14 AM

To: Joyce Rees

Subject: RE: Invoice from Advitek Inc. 8881

These look great- thank you! I will get sent over to the AP team this morning.

From: Joyce Rees [mailto:JoyceRees@advitek.com]
Sent: Monday, January 12, 2015 10:02 AM

To: Rachel.Roberts

Cc: Kathrin.Menge

Subject: FW: Invoice from Advitek Inc, 8881

Good Morning Rachel;
Here is the first of the 4 invoices that have been revised.

Joyce Rees

President

235 Yorkland Blvd, Suite 301
Toronto, ON, M2J 4Y8

Office: 416-756-2867 x201
Mobile: 416-573-7990

From: Accounting

Sent: January 12, 2015 10:59 AM

To: Joyce Rees

Subject: Invoice from Advitek Inc. 8881

Dear Customer :

Your invoice appears below. Please remit payment at your earliest convenience.

Thank you for your business - we appreciate it very much.

Sincerely,



. Advitek Inc.
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To: Kathrin.Menge <Kathrin.Menge @target.com>
Cc: Joyce Rees <JoyceRees@advitek.com>
Subject: RE: One final request

Hi Kathrin-

| have been working with the Accounts Payable team to resolve this. | am going to speak to a Manager in
Accounts Payable today and will get back to before the end of the work day.

Thanks,

Rachel

From: Kathrin.Menge

Sent: Thursday, January 22, 2015 10;14 AM

To: Bethany.Schelthorn; Chris.VonDohlen; Rachel.Roberts
Cc: Joyce Rees

Subject: One final request

Hi Bethany, Chris & Rachel, _
In speaking with Joyce, at Advitek, | learned that none of the invoices below were paid for all of the Loon
work that they did. From May 2014 onwards | was asked to send the invoices to Enterprise Strategy in
the US, which we did. Then 2 days before the Canadian closure announcement you asked Advitek ta
change the invoices to Canada instead. |find this very suspicious, and | feel absolutely terrible for
Advitek who is now out around $250,000 (partly Loon projects, and partly other Canadian work they did
for us).

So if you can please do your best to pay the 4 invoices below for the Loon work out of the US budget, we
would all be very appreciative!

8862 520,000 plus HST

© 8873 $13,500 plus HST

8875 512,250 plus HST
8881 58,500 plus HST



| will be losing my laptop tomorrow, so this is my last chance to try to make things
right. Bethany/Chris/Rachel —anything you can do to help would be appreciated!

Thanks,
Kathrin

Kathrin Menge | Guest Insights Manager | Target Canada |
5570 Exptorer Dr., Mississauga, ON, LAW 0C4 | kathrin.menge@target.com | Tel: (289) 261-0086
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Begin forwarded message:

From: Rachel.Roberts <Rachel.Roberts(@target.com>
Date: February 10, 2015 at 4:21:04 PM EST

To: Joyce Rees' <JoyceRees@advitek.com>
Subject: RE: Vendor Set Up- Advitek

HiJoyce-

| just contacted the Accounts Payable team and it doesn’t sound like the check was issued. There was a
question around where the business was conducted since ! set you up as a US vendor. One of my
managers has been in contact with the AP team. | will follow up with him and find out if he has more
information.

Thanks

Rachel

From: Joyce Rees [ mailto:JoyceRees@advitek.com]
Sent: Tuesday, February 10, 2015 2:58 PM

To: Rachel.Roberts
Subject: RE: Vendor Set Up- Advitek

Hi Rachel;
Can you let me know if a chegue has in fact been issues for the four invoices?
Thank you.

Joyce Rees

President

235 Yorkland Blvd, Suite 301
Toronto, ON, M2J 4Y8

Office: 416-756-2867 x201
Mobile: 416-573-7990



From: Joyce Rees

Sent: February 9, 2015 1:27 PM

To: 'Rachel.Roberts'

Subject: RE: Vendor Set Up- Advitek

Hi Rachel,;

So far | still have not received a cheque or a deposit to the account.
Has a cheque been issued?

Joyce Rees

President

235 Yorkland Blvd, Suite 301
Toronto, ON, M2J 4Y8

Office: 416-756-2867 x201
Mobile: 418-573-7990

From: Rachel.Roberts {mailto:Rachel.Roberts@target.com]
Sent: February 3, 2015 4:21 PM

To: Joyce Rees

Subject: RE: Vendor Set Up- Advitek

Hi Joyce-

We are looking into this today. | will follow up when | know more.
Thanks!

Rachel

From: Joyce Rees [mailtc:JoyceRees@advitek.com]
Sent: Monday, February 02, 2015 6:28 AM

To: Rachel.Roberts
Subject: RE: Vendor Set Up- Advitek
Importance: High



HI Rachel
At this point { have seen nothing in either the Canadian or US account. Would you mid checking on it for

me.
Thanks

Joyce Rees

President

235 Yorkland Blvd, Suite 301
Toronto, ON, M2J 4Y8

Office: 418-756-2867 x201
Mobile: 416-573-7990

From: Rachel.Roberts [mailto:Rachel.Roberts@target.com]
Sent: January 26, 2015 4:01 PM

To: Joyce Rees

Subject: RE: Vendor Set Up- Advitek

Hi Joyce-

For the sake of time, § am going to leave as is. | am not sure if they will be paying in US or CAD dollars
but assume that it will not be an electronic payment. Please let me know when you receive payment. |
am hoping it will be within one week. | will let you know if we encounter any snags on our end.
Thanks!

Rachel

From: Joyce Rees [mailto:JoyceRees@adyvitek.com]
Sent: Monday, January 26, 2015 9:59 AM

To: Rachel.Roberts

Subject: RE: Vendor Set Up- Advitek

HI Rachel;

Thank you for doing this!
Here is the invoice revised this time to the US Target Corporation and with no HST.

Will this be paid in US $ or CDN $?
Will it be an electronic payment?

The reason | ask is that if you are paying in US currency Advitek operates a US currency account and |
would give you that account number instead of the Canadian account number. But if changing the
details at this time is awkward or would create a delay, leave it.

3



Joyce Rees

President

235 Yorkland Blvd, Suite 301
Toronto, ON, M2J 4Y8

Office: 416-756-2867 x201
Mobile: 416-573-7990

From: Rachel.Roberts [mailto:Rachel.Reherts@target.com]
Sent: January 26, 2015 10:42 AM

To: Joyce Rees

Subject: RE: Vendor Set Up- Advitek

Hello-
I attached it to the previous email. It is invoice number 8875 submitted on 11/28/14.
Thanks!

From: Joyce Rees [mailto:JoyceRees@advitek.com]
Sent: Monday, January 26, 2015 9:41 AM

To: Rachel,Roberts

Subject: RE: Vendor Set Up- Advitek

Hello Rachel

Yes | can modify the one that has HST, Which one is that, if you tell me | can get it revised ASAP!
Thank you ever so much.

Joyce

Joyce Rees

President

235 Yorkland Blvd, Suite 301
Toronto, ON, M2.J 4Y8

Office: 416-756-2867 x201
Mobile: 416-573-7990



From: Rachel.Roberts [mailto:Rachel.Roberts@target.com]
Sent: January 26, 2015 10:40 AM

To: Joyce Rees

Subject: RE: Vendor Set Up- Advitek

Joyce-

Good news! | was able to submit three of the invoices to accounts payable! The fourth one includes the
HST tax. Are you able to remove this and resubmit today? All of our invoices for the fiscal year are due
today so | want to be sure we get it taken care of right away. Thank you for your patience as we worked
through this process and | am so happy it worked out the way it did.

Have a great day!

Rachel

From: Joyce Rees [mailto:JoyceRees@advitek,com]
Sent: Monday, January 26, 2015 8:18 AM

To: Rachel.Roberts

Subject: RE: Vendor Set Up- Advitek

Hi Rachel;

I hope you had a good weekend. [ think you are about to be slammed with snow today! Good luck.
Were you able to get those transactions processed?

Joyce

Joyce Rees

President

235 Yorkland Blvd, Suite 301
Toronto, ON, M2J 4Y8

Office: 416-756-2867 x201
Mobile: 416-573-7990




From: Rachel.Roberts {mailto:Rachel,Roberts@target.com]
Sent: January 23, 2015 9:43 AM

To: Joyce Rees

Subject: RE: Vendor Set Up- Advitek

Joyce-

| have edited your first page and will be sending it to the Vendor team. | hope to get these invoices
processed today ©

Thanks!

From: Joyce Rees [mailto: JoyceRees@advitek.com]
Sent: Friday, January 23, 2015 8:27 AM

To: Rachel.Roberts

Subject: RE: Vendor Set Up- Advitek

Hi Rachel:

Our Tax ID with Canada Revenue Agency is 10006 4120 TROO1. Iassume this is the number requested.
The service (market research data coflection) was conducted in Canada and delivered to the US.

Thank you for attending to this issue.

Joyce Rees

President

235 Yorkland Blvd, Suite 301
Toronto, ON, M2J 4Y8

Office: 416-756-2867 x201
Mobile: 416-573-7990

From: Rachel.Roberts [mailto:Rachel.Roberts@target.com]
Sent: January 23, 2015 9:15 AM

To: Joyce Rees

Subject: FW: Vendor Set Up- Advitek

Importance: High

Hello Joyce-
| received the below note from the Vendor team. Are you able to make the change?
Thanks!

6




Rachel

From: Melissa.Kopp

Sent: Friday, January 23, 2015 8:04 AM
To: Rachel.Roberts

Cc: ap.expvendorsetup; Melissa.Kopp
Subject: FW: Vendor Set Up- Advitek
Importance: High

Hi Rachel-
Can you please ask the vendor to update the W-8-BEN-E to enter their Foreign Tax Id?
Also, are these services being provided in Canada or the US?

Thanks,
Melissa Kapp| Accountant | Non-Merch Accounts Payable | uTarget | Finance | 7000 Target Parkway, NCC-0275 | Minneapolis,
MN 55445 | 763.440-5502 |“ma™

For alf payment status inquries — Please contact A/P Help Desk at: Canada.APHelpDesk@Target.com or

Helpdesk@target.com
0,700 0%0_°0°°00%: *0%°0 0% 6 *0°°e0%e *0°00%0,

From: ap.expvendorsetup

Sent: Friday, January 23, 2015 7:41 AM
To: Melissa.Kopp

Subject: FW. Vendor Set Up- Advitek
Importance: High

Hi Melissa,
Vendor 0032616 ADVITEK INC is a new set up.
Kindly let us know when the hold can be taken off.

Thanks,
Sandhya.]

From: Rachel.Roberts

Sent: Friday, January 23, 2015 1:56 AM
Subject: Vendor Set Up- Advitek
Importance: High

Hello-

I need to set up Advitek as a Vendor ASAP as invoices need to be processed by 1/26/15. Attached is their
information. Please get back to me if you have any questions.

Thanks!

Rachel Roberts
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Statement

Advitek Inc.
235 Yorkland Boulevard Date
Suite 301 , 1/19/2015
Toronto, Ontario
M2J 4Y8§
To:
Target Canada Corporation
5570 Exploret Drive
Mississauga, ON, L4W 0C4
Amount Due Amount Enc.
CAD 232,328.00
Date Description Amount Balance
07/20/2012 Balance forward 0,60
08/13/2014 INV #8848, 0.00 0.00
-— Study $0.00
-~= Tax: HST On Sales @ [3.0%=0.00
09/30/2044 INV #8856, 49,946.00 49,946.00
--- Study $44,200.00
--- Tax; HST On Sales @ [3.0% = 5,746.00
[0/31/2014 INV #8862, 22,600.00 72,546.00
- Study $20,000.00
we Taxt HST On Sales (@ 13.0% = 2,600.00
11/17/2014 INV #8873, 15,255.00 87.801.00
-~ Study $13,500.00
--- Tax: HS'[' On Sales @ 13.0% = 1,755.00
11/17/2014 PMT #1018436. -49.946.00 37,855.00
11/28/2014 INV #8875, 13,842.50 51,697.50
= Study $12,250.00
-— Tax: HST On Sales @ 13.06% = 1,592.50
12/68/2014 INV #8880. 39,267.50 90,965.00
--- Study $34,750.00
--- Tax: HST On Sales @ 13.0% =4,517.50
12/10/2014 INV #8881. 9,605.00 100,570.00
--- Study $8,500.00
- Tax: HST On Sales @ [3.0% = 1,105.00
01/06/2015 INV #8885, 88,140.00 188,710.00
- Study $78.000.00
-« Tax: HST On Sales @ 13.0% = 10,140.00
01/15/2015 INV #8886, 43,618.00 232,328.00
- Study $38,600.00
-— Tax: HST On Sales @ 13.0% = 5,018.00
1-30 DAYS PAST 31-80 DAYS PAST | 61-60 DAYS PAST OVER 90 DAYS
CURRENT DUE DUE DUE PAST DUE AMOUNT DUE
131,758.00 62,715.00 37,855.00 0.00 0.00 CAD 232,328.00
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